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PROCEEDI NG

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: I'd like to open the

hearing in Docket DE 13-059 and DE 13-060. These a
dockets that were consolidated for proceedings. Th
involve Resident Power Natural Gas & Electric Solut
LLC, and PNE Energy Supply, LLC. The dockets were
initiated by an Order of Notice dated February 28th

by the Commission, which called for proceedings to

to a recommendation filed by the Commission Staff t
Commission schedule a show cause hearing as to whet
Resident and/or PNE should be subject to penalties
suspension or revocation of their registrations pur

to administrative rules of the Commission. And, th

the last, really, just a month's time there have be
numerous pleadings, filings back and forth, dealing
procedural issues, issues on the merits, tremendous

exchange of discovery and discussions among the par

So, in a moment, we'll take appearances.

And, then, as | understand it, we received late yes
afternoon a proposed Settlement Agreement reached b
the Staff and Resident and PNE, which we will hear
evidence on. We understand it's not a settlement
involving the other party, the Office of Consumer

Advocate, and I'll be interested in your descriptio

re two

ey

ions,

, 2013
respond
hat the
her

or
suant
en, in
en

with

ties.

terday

etween

n of

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

what you think the appropriate procedure should be to work
through all of that today.

So, let's first start with appearances
please. Mr. Carter.

MR. CARTER: Good morning. I'm Chris
Carter. I'm here with my colleague, Dan Deschenes, and
Bart Fromuth and Gus Fromuth upon behalf of PNE and
Resident Power.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Good morning.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: Susan Chamberlin,
Consumer Advocate for the residential ratepayers, a nd with
me today is Stephen Eckberg.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Good morning.

MR. SPEIDEL: Good morning,

Commissioners. Alexander Speidel, representing the Staff

of the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission. And, |
have with me Assistant Director Steve Mullen and Di rector
Amanda Noonan, of the Electric Division and the Con sumer

Affairs Division respectively. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Good morning. Thank
you. Is there an understanding of the best way to present
the Settlement this morning? Anything that's been agreed
upon? Mr. Speidel.

MR. SPEIDEL: Yes. I think, in general

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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terms, Chairman Ignatius, that we would like to hav ea
panel of witnesses presented, specifically Staff wi tnesses
Mullen and Noonan. I'd like to have the two Settle ment
documents filed as exhibits. The first exhibit wou Id be
the redacted public version of the Settlement Agree ment

and the second exhibit would be the unredacted
confidential version of the Settlement Agreement. I'd
like to have Witnesses Noonan and Mullen adopt the
document, and also open themselves to Bench questio ning,
if appropriate.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. And,
guestioning from OCA and the Companies as well?

MR. SPEIDEL: Of course, yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Is that acceptable,
that Staff, that would be the first presentation wo uld be
the Staff panel?

MR. SPEIDEL.: It would be the primary
presentation.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Are
there other witnesses that people intend to call?

MR. CARTER: No. We do not intend to
call any witnesses. But we will be available to an swer
any questions.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right.

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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Ms. Chamberlin.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: Your Honor, at some
point I'd like to address the request for confident
of the Settlement Agreement. | believe the Settlem
Agreement should not be confidential, that one para
And, | know that it has been received with the agre
to treat it confidential until the Commission decid
otherwise. But | don't believe that it falls under
the exceptions. And, | believe that the public sho
able to know all of the terms of the Settlement Agr

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. And, are
you planning on calling a witness, Ms. Chamberlin?

MS. CHAMBERLIN: No. I'm planning to
proceed through cross-examination.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Allright. So,
before we get to the confidentiality question, is i
acceptable to the parties to have the Staff withess
be presented, then go to cross-examination, questio
us, and then | assume the only other order of busin
would be public comments, if anyone has them, and ¢
arguments?

MR. CARTER: That's acceptable to us,
Ms. Ignatius.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right.
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Mr. Fossum.
MR. FOSSUM: Good morning. Matthew
Fossum, for Public Service Company of New Hampshire
have a couple of withesses who are here and availab
they were requested to be available. | guess it so
the moment like perhaps they won't be called, but t
nevertheless here. And, | wanted to just speak, be
you had mentioned the possibility of public comment
does have a public comment to make and it would app
the opportunity to do so. | don't know what would
best for the Commission, in terms of receipt of tha
comment. We're certainly willing and able to make
prior to proceeding on the Settlement Agreement, an
would leave that to the Commissioners. But we're r
willing and able to make that comment at any time.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. And, if
others have an interest in making public comment
statements, we'll entertain that. They are always
authorized by those who are not intervenors. We ge
do it at the end of a proceeding, but let me consul
my colleagues. And, if any of the parties have an
-- have a concern or a preference on timing, I'd be
willing to hear that as well.

(Chairman and Commissioners conferring.)
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Is there any

preference on the part of the parties and Staff as

public statements should be taken?

MR. SPEIDEL: No preference on the part

of Staff.

MR. CARTER: We'd request that they be

made at the end, as what you just suggested is an o

procedure.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: | agree with that. |

think it would be just more orderly to have it at t

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Fossum.

MR. FOSSUM: | guess, to the extent that

our preference weighs in here, our preference would
make a statement at the beginning. | understand th
common practice to have it at the end. However, it
like there's going to be at least a portion of this
hearing that will be held in confidential session.
don't know what portion that might be or how long t
might last. 1 think, to the extent that PSNH's wit
may or may not be called for, if they're not going
called later in the proceeding, it would make sense
actually dismiss them then. If they're not going t
part of the proceeding, it just seems to make sense

our perspective, to allow PSNH the opportunity to m
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comment. And, to the extent that nobody has any fu

guestions for PSNH, then, so be it.

(Chairman and Commissioners conferring.)

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. | think

we will agree to do the opening statement -- | mean
excuse me, the public statement from PSNH before th
testifies, so that we'll know whether we think, bas
that, there's going to be a need for having your wi
stay. And, if not, they would be free to leave. T

more efficient.

Before we get to that, however, | think

the question of confidentiality has been raised, an
we do need to take up before we begin evidence, bec
that will affect whether or not we have to close an
portion of the proceeding. For those who aren't fr
fliers here, we have, at times, confidential inform
that has been made available to the parties under a
commitment that they keep it confidential, and that
we have to present any of that on the record, we ha
clear the room for those who are not parties to the
proceeding. So that that would mean, if we have to
into any confidential matters, the Consumer Advocat
Commission Staff, and the Companies' people, both

witnesses and counsel, would remain, and everybody
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would have to leave the room. We would keep a tran
of it, but it would be in a marked "confidential" s
And, when that section dealing with confidential ma
is concluded, we would then bring everybody back in
room.

It's not preferred. We try to stay out
of that as much as possible. And, we try to discus
things in a way that doesn't require going into
confidential materials whenever possible.

But there is one section of the proposed
Settlement Agreement that has been marked as
"confidential" until a ruling by the Commission. A
that's on Page 2. I'm sure everybody's redacted ve
shows that it goes from Section 2.2 to Section 2.4.
Section 2.3 has been marked "confidential". Otherw
the entire Settlement Agreement and the attached
stipulation is public.

And, | think it would be best to first
ask those who are proposing that it be confidential
would be Staff and the Companies, to explain why th
paragraph, without getting into specifics, if you ¢
it needs to be confidential, and you have to be a |
bit general in description, to the extent you're ab

do that, and the OCA be able to respond. If you ca
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describe why it needs to be confidential without go ing
into confidential matters, then, you'll have to tel I me
that. We'll give the OCA a chance to argue without having

-- well, you've seen the materials.
MS. CHAMBERLIN: | have the materials.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: And, to the extent

you're able to describe anything without being delv ing
into confidential matters, we'll hear that. If nee d be,
even for discussion of how to treat this section, w e may
have to clear the hearing room. But let's first tr y and

discuss it in general terms and see if we can make
progress without, while everybody is still able to hear
the full discussion. Mr. Carter.

MR. CARTER: Thank you. This one

paragraph relates to information that previously ha S been
granted confidential treatment by the Commission. And,
so, for that reason, we ask that it be -- we think that

was -- we agree with that prior --
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: And, you can feel
free to sit, if it's easier. The mike is important for
the court reporter.
MR. CARTER: We agree with the prior
decision to treat this information confidentially. And,

for that reason, we had asked that only this one pa ragraph

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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be treated confidentially with respect to the Settl ement.
MR. SPEIDEL: Yes, Chairman Ignatius.

In an abundance of caution, Staff had agreed to the

request for confidential treatment for this Settlem ent
term, on the basis of the fact that there had been an
original reference document supplied by the Compani es
under request for confidential treatment back in Fe bruary
that referred to this general matter. And, | -- an d,
Staff takes the overall view that we try to be as c areful
as possible in making sure that we don't inadverten tly
disclose confidences in advance of the Commission r uling

on confidentiality.

Now, | would have to confess that |

would like to make doubly sure that, if the Commiss ion has
definitively ruled on this point, that it is still within
the ambit of confidentiality. But, that said, pres uming
that the Commission, even if it hasn't definitively ruled

on this issue, it's best to keep it confidential in
advance of any definitive ruling on the subject mat ter at
hand.

And, the material was filed originally
in DE 11-075, the source material for the concerns about
confidentiality. So, --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Well, can | ask a

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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clarification, from both of you, before we go to

Ms. Chamberlin? What I've heard so far is, "becaus
Commission has an order protecting it, you have to
careful and not violate that", which | appreciate.
could make a new ruling right now and free everybod
that restriction. So, is your request that it be
protected not only because it had been protected be
but that it should remain protected for reasons
independent of what happened in the past? | mean,
the reason today that this section should remain
protected?

MR. SPEIDEL: What I'm trying to
explain, Commissioners, that we're not 100 percent
you have issued that definitive ruling quite yet.
under the Commission rules, pending a definitive ru
a subject matter of a confidentiality ruling, you h
keep it in confidence. So, we would, again, reques
perhaps this be revisited at a later point through
a separate order, and that you take the arguments o
various parties into consideration.

Staff is responding to a request for
confidentiality by the Companies as part of the Set
Agreement, and we were settling with that party. W

it into due consideration, and it made sense to us
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basis of their past request for confidentiality in the
11-075 docket, that source material. So, we're not really
in a position to say "well, yes, it would be great if it
were disclosed." We would, frankly, prefer that, f or the
time being at least, at the bare minimum, that we m aintain

it confidentially.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Carter.

MR. CARTER: If | could just add, this

paragraph isn't material to any of the -- | suggest is not
material to any of the steps that are being taken t o]
implement the Settlement terms that are outlined in this
Article II. It's a carryover from prior history, i fyou

will. And, from my clients' point of view, it is

appropriate to treat this paragraph confidentially,

because it relates to matters that -- | submit it w ould --
releasing it would relate -- would convey a mislead ing
impression, in terms of what some of the prior even ts here
were.

And, I'd be happy to go into more detail
confidentially. But, again, | don't believe that t his
paragraph is material to the other Settlement terms or to
the public's ability to understand what the other
Settlement terms are.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Well, I really have

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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to challenge you on that. | don't follow. Within this
section, there's some terms that are all about

implementing the terms of the Settlement Agreement.

They're mechanical. They, to me, are significant t 0 what
it is that is being proposed here. And, there's so me
other parts of this section that seem to refer to, as

Mr. Speidel keeps referring to, "source documents” or

something like that.

So, is it true -- is it really all of

2.3 you feel needs to be protected or only some sub set of
2.3? And, again, if there's a concern that you can it
release it, because we may have protected it in the past,
we're here to make a determination and can go and ¢ onsult
and come back with a ruling. So, that shouldn't be the
basis. It's really what today is the right thing t odo
and why something is required under 91-A to be prot ected.

MR. CARTER: We can propose a limited
redaction, which | think will accomplish -- | hope will
accomplish everyone's objectives. And, perhaps we could
approach or --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Or, we
could take a quick break. Did you have questions a s well?

CMSR. SCOTT: | was just going to

suggest, perhaps between the commas of the first se ntence

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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may be all you need to redact, as a suggestion?

MR. CARTER: | think that might have

been exactly what we were thinking. If | could app roach?
I'm not sure how --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | know. Well, |
think --

MR. CARTER: It would be from the first
-- after the first comma, from there to the word "f rom"in
the second line. | think that is between the first two
commas. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: So, the top half of
the first sentence to the halfway into the second s entence

-- first line, and halfway into the second line?
MR. CARTER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: And, otherwise, you

would not have an objection to the rest of 2.3 bein g

released, presuming there's no Commission issue wit

MR. CARTER: Correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Speidel, would
you have any concern with the more limited redactio
proposed?

MR. SPEIDEL: That phrase there really
goes to the heart of what the Staff was worried abo

terms of inadvertently disclosing confidences. So,

hit?

ut, in

if it
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works for the Companies, it would work for us.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Ms. Chamberlin, any

concern?

MS. CHAMBERLIN: Well, I'm concerned in
that the public interest, from the consumer’s point of
view, is in full disclosure. There's been a great deal of
confusion. | think that's been the most significan t
impact of all the events. And, so, even if there's a
black spot, people are going to wonder "what is tha t?"

| actually think that the -- that the
information is -- | don't see that it's commerciall y
sensitive. | just don't see why it's -- | just don 't even

see why it needs to be confidential.

| suppose, if we could use a generic

phrase, so that the sentence actually makes sense, | could
do that. But | just -- | really don't like releasi ng a
settlement agreement to the public with a black spo tin

it, for reasons that | don't really understand. | mean, |
don't see the commercial sensitivity of this as it' sa

settlement agreement. 1 just don't see it.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Yes. Commissioner
Harrington, a question.

CMSR. HARRINGTON: Yes. Mr. Speidel,

just a question. You had said earlier that this

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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paragraph, the information in it, was requested
confidential treatment by the Company, and that it
"pending”, and that some ruling may come in the fut
So, until that ruling was made, felt confidential
treatment should be given to it at this time, which
standard practice. Is that correct?

MR. SPEIDEL: Well, there's two separate
issues. There's the original source document that
from the month of February in 11-075, that has been
submitted to the Commissioners. And, the Companies
requested confidential treatment for that source ma
And, I'm not certain, | don't think that the Commis
has definitively ruled on whether that source mater
should have confidential treatment or not. My
understanding is it will probably be handled throug
post hearing order in this proceeding tangentially.

So, what Staff was concerned about here,
and what Staff has agreed to, was the Companies sai
"Look, this is kind of relating to the same sensiti
material. We would ask that you also agree, as par
the Settlement Agreement, to file this as a confide
provision and redact that." And, from Staff's
perspective, we weren't really weighing in on wheth

material should be forevermore confidential, we wer
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weighing in on the fact that "yes, as of March the
we're giving it confidential treatment, this source
material, this type of material, confidential treat
per force of the Commission rule that says "in adva
the Commission ruling on confidentiality, the Staff
maintain the confidence".
So, we were reacting to that, and the
fact that we had to produce a document in short ord
have it submitted, and not really overstep our auth
to Staff.
CMSR. HARRINGTON: Okay. That's very
helpful. Let me get to my second question then. |
the future, that source material was found to be no
gualified as being confidential and be released, wh
effect would that have on the Settlement Agreement,
was approved, given the statement in the General
Provisions, "if anything is changed and it's not
acceptable to both parties, then the Settlement Agr
goes away"? | mean, --
MR. SPEIDEL: Well, that's a legal
guestion that | think, if we step back a little bit
way it would work, as a practical matter, is that,
Commission were to find that full public disclosure

this Settlement provision were to be appropriate, |
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there could be some consultative process where comm ent
could be invited from the Companies, for instance, and
from Staff. And, if they were to agree to that, in
theory, there wouldn't be much of a need to fret ab out the
effect on the Settlement Agreement.

CMSR. HARRINGTON: | guess my point is,
what if this remains confidential for the purposes of
today's hearing. And, then, in the future, a rulin gon
that source material, it was determined to be not

confidential. What would happen to the Settlement

Agreement, if it had been approved, and on the basi s of

"as written" with the Company, would the Company th en have
an option to come back and say "the Settlement Agre ement
is no longer valid, because you changed it after th e

fact"?

MR. SPEIDEL: Essentially, it wouldn't
change the terms of the Agreement. It would change the
disclosure of the Agreement to the public at large. You

have at your hands the confidential version that's

completely unredacted. That is what is being submi tted to
the Commission for its review. You have full knowl edge,
as does the Office of the Consumer Advocate and the Staff
and the Companies of what's in the material. So, t he
material itself isn't changing, it's just the vehic le for

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

22

disclosure would change for the public's consumptio n.

CMSR. HARRINGTON: Okay. I'm just
looking at the part that says, in Section 3.1, "wit hout
change or condition”.

MR. SPEIDEL: Yes.

CMSR. HARRINGTON: So, this, making this
what's right now confidential not confidential, doe sn't
invoke the Section 3.1 privilege of the Company to
basically make the Settlement -- withdraw from the

Settlement Agreement?

MR. SPEIDEL: Well, | would hope that

everyone will take a common sense approach to that and not
do that. | mean, in theory, you can kind of petty fog a
lot of little issues. But | think that the Compani es and
the Staff and everyone would kind of recognize that it's
good to maintain the substantive terms of the Settl ement

Agreement, even if 2.3 were to be disclosed after a
Commission ruling on the confidentiality, | hope. | hope.
CMSR. HARRINGTON: All right. Thank
you.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | appreciate the
suggestion that a more refined redaction would be
acceptable, and that goes a long way towards our co ncerns

to be able to really address in a public forum what itis
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that's being proposed here.

Let me ask you about your redaction. If

you look in the first line, rather than after the c omma,
if you moved two words over, and started the redact ion
there, is that all right? Because | see that the p art
that I'm suggesting you open up is repeated at the bottom

of the section as well.

MR. CARTER: That's fine.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Allright. So, that
certainly provides more detail to the public. Any --
Ms. Chamberlin, are you still concerned?

MS. CHAMBERLIN: I'm still concerned. |
also wasn't quite sure what you did.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Oh. That's a
different question. In the first line, move the re daction
two words past the comma. So, it would begin --

CMSR. HARRINGTON: Before the "T".

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Before the -- it
would begin --

MS. CHAMBERLIN: May | approach?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Yes.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: | mean, | just want to
see what you're doing.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: So, one, two -- ten
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words would be redacted. Starting at the -- toward
end of the first line, going to the middle of the s
line.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: 1 still maintain that
there's no reason to keep that confidential. | jus
think it could be stricken completely from the Agre
so that the Agreement is -- however, | didn't sign
Agreement, so, | shouldn't -- I'm not in the positi
rewriting it. But | would -- | believe the Settlem
Agreement should be public. And that, if you strik
out, so there's no big black mark in the Agreement,
think that's preferable. | don't see the importanc
the information. | don't see -- | don't see the
confidentiality of the information. | just don'tt
they have met the burden of showing that this shoul
that this is against, you know, against any privacy

interest.

(Chairman and Commissioners conferring.)

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Allright. The
suggestion that those -- that phrase, the more limi
phrase now be redacted -- be stricken, rather than
redacted, and not appear in the document, was an
interesting one. Is it necessary to be there at al

just ask the Company and the Staff. And, does that

s the

econd

hink
d be --

ted

[?
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resolve the problem?
MR. CARTER: | don't think it does need
to be -- does not need to be there. We'd be happy to
replace it. We can do so this morning, during the
pendency of this hearing, if that would be helpful?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Any concern on the

Staff's part to simply striking those words that be gin --
the last two words of Line 1, and up to the comma o n Line
27

MR. SPEIDEL: Again, under the terms of
the Commission rules, we're kind of the tail of the
Company's dog, in terms of maintaining confidences. If
that works for them, it works for us.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Then, why don't we

do that. We will strike the last two words of the first
line, through the comma in the second line. And, t hen,
with that, and | want to make sure, before | say an ything
further, that that would be -- the Company would wi thdraw

its request for confidentiality for all of 2.3?

MR. CARTER: Yes. And, we would be
willing to have a substitute page presented.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Yes.

MR. CARTER: If the Commission would

like that?
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: That will be great.
We'll -- yes. So that what we will want to do, so
people who don't have copies of this in front of th
what in the world it is we're talking about, Sectio
let me read it into the record. And, then, we will
get a replacement page. And, it may be that even,
Mr. Speidel, you could get someone from the Commiss
Staff to rerun that page here from our systems, or
anyone else wants to work on that.

Let me read what 2.3 will now read:
"Within 3 days of the approval of this Agreement, t
10,000" -- excuse me -- "the $100,000 from the escr
account established by PNE with Sovereign Bank purs
PUC 2003.01(d)(4) and 2003.03, shall be delivered b
Commission to counsel for PNE, and shall be held by
counsel for PNE in a client IOLTA", I-O-L-T-A, "acc
pending the delivery of all one-time customer payme
described in Paragraph 2.1. Counsel for PNE shall
said $100,000 to PNE after delivery of all said cus
payments."

| appreciate that. Thank you. That
will make questioning far easier and addressing in
subsequent order. Right. So, with that, the Settl

Agreement is fully publicly available. And, I thin

that
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unless there's anything else, procedural matters to take
up, can we begin with the Staff panel?

MR. SPEIDEL: Yes. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Oh, I'm sorry.

MR. SPEIDEL: Oh, the PSNH --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: The public statement

from PSNH.

MR. FOSSUM: Thank you. Mr. Bersak will
be delivering the public comment orally, but | do h ave
copies of what he will be saying to distribute to t hose

who wish to have them.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Mr.
Speidel? Oh, you're wishing to have it.

MR. SPEIDEL: Yes. Thank you. I'm
sorry.

MR. BERSAK: Thank you, madam Chair,
Commissioners. We appreciate the opportunity to ma ke our
public comment at this time, so that, if it's not
necessary for us to be here all day, we can go back and
tend to other duties.

| am Robert Bersak. I'm Assistant
Secretary and Associate General Counsel of Public S ervice
Company of New Hampshire. PSNH appreciates the

opportunity to make this public comment pursuant to the
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Commission's rules.

The purpose of today's hearing is to
hear evidence to determine whether Resident Power o r PNE
have violated the Commission's rules regarding the
competitive marketplace. This is not a hearing abo ut
PSNH. PSNH is present here today to answer questio ns at
the request of Commission Staff.

However, because PSNH is neither a party

nor an intervenor in today's dockets, we deemed it

necessary to provide this public comment to succinc tly
state our position concerning certain aspects of th e
subject matter of these proceedings that do relate to
PSNH.

Ever since PNE made what has been deemed
a "voluntary" business decision to walk away from i ts
obligations to its customers, PNE and Resident Powe r have

cast blame for their predicament and the impact to

customers on PSNH. They did this in myriad formal filings
with this Commission, as well as in the media. But PSNH
did not cause the problems facing PNE and Resident Power.

They did that on their own.
Like many thousands of other New
Hampshire residents and businesses, PSNH has not pr ofited,

but has suffered harm as a result of PNE's decision to
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default at ISO-New England, of PSNH's -- of PNE's d ecision
not to cure that default, and PNE's resulting immed iate
suspension from the New England wholesale electrici ty
marketplace. PNE made those decisions; not PSNH, n ot
Commission Staff, not anyone else. But PSNH, Staff , and
this Commission have been left to clean up the chao s and
confusion that PNE and Resident Power have created, and

have been the targets of their blame.
In the Respondent's pre-hearing
memorandum filed just last week, they begin their
explanation of the events leading up to their deal with
FairPoint in November of last year. But, according to

their filings, they did not reach a deal to sell

approximately 8,500 of their customers to FairPoint until
Wednesday, February 6. On February 7, PNE, Residen t
Power, and FairPoint jointly asked the Commission t 0 waive
certain consumer protection rules in order to allow that
transaction to move ahead immediately, foregoing pr ior
notice that the Commission's regulations would norm ally
require.

In support of that filing, they told the

Commission "No special off-cycle meter read dates w ill be
necessary as a result of this transfer. Customers will
transfer suppliers upon their next scheduled meter read
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date." They also stated, "There will be no risk or
detriment to PSNH as a result of this transfer or
requested waiver." And, finally, "Furthermore, the
be no risk or detriment to the transferred customer
Based on the content of their Petition, the Commiss
granted their request for waiver the very next day,

Friday, February 8th.

As noted in the Respondent's Joint

Petition for Waiver, in New Hampshire's competitive
electricity marketplace, transactions take place up
customer's next scheduled meter read date. These
transactions are implemented via an Electronic Data
Interface, or EDI, system that was established by t
Commission in 1998. As part of this Commission's E
protocol, suppliers are responsible for submitting
into the EDI system detailing who serves a customer
account, the rate that customer pays, and other asp
the customer/supplier relationship. The accuracy a
timeliness of those inputs are the responsibility o
suppliers; neither PSNH nor any of the other utilit
this state enter that data. EDI transactions submi

a supplier to a utility's EDI system are not implem
until a customer's next meter-read date following a

business day waiting period. This waiting period,

re will
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part of the EDI rules implemented by this Commissio
is not a PSNH policy, as stated by Respondents in t
pre-hearing memo.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Bersak, let me
stop you for a moment please. You have a seven-pag
statement, and we're now only two pages through it.
you're reading it verbatim, which is fine, but, if
what it is, you can simply submit it. There'snor
for you to read it and make the court reporter type
word-for-word what's already in print. Most public
statements we're used to are people who haven't wri
anything, they speak from the heart, and they are i
out fairly quickly. So, I don't --
MR. BERSAK: | would prefer to read it,
if | have the opportunity, madam Chair.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | don't see why it's
a useful time spent of us and the court reporter to
down what we have in writing. So, | guess --
MR. BERSAK: | guess that it would be
instructive to be able to ask for the Commissioners
guestions of the panel that's about to appear.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: A public statement
IS not subject to cross-examination.

MR. BERSAK: | understand.

And,
that's
eason

down

tten

n and

type

to ask
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: They are not facts
that are found. It's a public statement of your po
view. And, we take it for that, and we give it the
that we deem appropriate.
MR. BERSAK: PSNH is one of the entities
in the state that has been harmed. It has suffered
greatest harm of any entity in this state. The Set
Agreement that's before the Commission for consider
today does not even discuss that harm.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Well, I think, if
PSNH feels that it has claims against the Company o
Commission Staff or anyone else, it ought to make t
claims. You're not -- you didn't move to intervene
case.
MR. BERSAK: That's correct.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: You're not a party
to cross-examine. You're not a party to oppose the
Settlement Agreement. So, if you feel you need a f
for that, that's fine. But | don't think that's he
Obviously, we will accept your statement. But | ju
wonder why we have to have someone take a stenograp
record of what's already in seven pages of typing?
MR. FOSSUM: Madam Chairman, |

understand the Commissioner's concern, but 203.18 d

int of
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tlement
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"Persons who do not have intervenor status in a pro ceeding
but having an interest in the subject matter shall be
provided with an opportunity at a hearing or prehea ring
conference to state their position." This would ap pear to

be our opportunity to state our position.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: And, you've prepared
it and made copies for everyone. So, | guess I'm j ust
guestioning why the need to read the seven-page sta tement,
rather than have it admitted to the record?

(Chairman and Commissioners conferring.)

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Bersak, | think

I'm going to give you two options. You can either just
submit the written statement as is or, if you'd lik eto
summarize any key high points briefly in addition t o that,
we'll give you that opportunity, but we're not goin gto

sit here and have you read five more pages.

MR. BERSAK: Thank you, madam Chair. We
can try to summarize this as quickly as we can. An d,
we'll provide the full statement to the parties her e and
to the Commission for their consideration.

The concerns that PSNH have is -- are

about threefold. Number one is that the Settlement that
we arrived here today and first read this morning c ontains
very little of substance. Our first and foremost ¢ oncern
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is that it appears that customers will not be fully
compensated for the harm that they suffered. A liq
offer to pay $9.50 per customer likely falls short
compensation. And, to get that, customers must wai
their claims against PNE. All entities damaged as
result of this situation should be fully compensate
their damages. The Settlement fails to even discus
fate of over 200 customers that were wrongly transf
or had EDI transactions submitted to be wrongly
transferred.

MR. CARTER: I don't-- I'm sorry if I'm
stepping on protocol, but this is a matter that is
part of this docket. These are not allegations tha
appear in the Staff's memo. | have been, in the la
days, I've been advised that there was a question,
raised by PSNH or by someone else, about | believe
the issue Mr. Bersak is referring to. 1 think it w
improper to inject those allegations, which are not
relevant to this -- to either proceeding into the p
comment in this matter. And, | believe, perhaps
Mr. Bersak can confirm, that he's not referring to
issue that is set forth in the Staff memorandum or
Order of Notice.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Bersak, is it,
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your understanding of the memao, is it within the sc
what was in the Staff memo or in the Commission's O
Notice?

MR. BERSAK: | believe it was.

ope of

rder of

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Mr. Speidel, do you

have a view on that?

MR. SPEIDEL: | was hoping that this --

| was hoping that this settlement hearing was not g

be a vehicle for collateral litigation of issues th

aren't within the scope of the Settlement Agreement
was signed and submitted after the close of Commiss
business yesterday, the Settlement Agreement. We a
prepared it. We came to a meeting of the minds. A
understand that the PSNH folks have a public commen
make and have a point of view, and that they had
anticipated that they would have to testify as a St
witness as of yesterday morning, for instance, and
yesterday afternoon, for instance, until this Settl

Agreement was actually finalized.

So, | can sympathize with their feeling

that they would like to get their point of view out
they have a First Amendment right to speak. But, a
juncture, | would really urge the Commissioners, if

at all make sure that this hearing is regarding the

oing to

at

aff

ement

, and
t this

we can
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Settlement Agreement. And, you know, if PSNH would

to file this written statement, | think that's perf

fine. They, again, have a right to make a public c

But I'm not going to call the PSNH folks as witness

today to discuss this Settlement Agreement. And, w

not litigating certain allegations within the conte

having the Commission review this Settlement Agreem
If I had to do it all over again,

perhaps | would have asked for a cooling-off period

the Commission held a hearing to review the Agreeme

But, | think, in the interest of timeliness and

efficiency, we had elected not to do so.

So, at this juncture, | would just, you

know, it's a settlement between two parties, Staff
Companies. We'd like to have the Staff witnesses p
their point of view on the Settlement and what the
Settlement means, and open them up to cross-examina
parties or friendly cross by parties, as appropriat

then Bench questioning.

At some point, there has to be kind of

an efficiency determination by the Commission as to
whether it is fruitful to have the Companies and PS
argue about allegations and claims right now in thi

context. Thank you.
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(Chairman and Commissioners conferring.)

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | do want to keep us

focused on what the Order of Notice brought forth.
there may be other issues for another day that are
legitimate. I'm not trying to suggest that they ar

But they, as | understand where you're heading, is
that is not part of the Order of Notice. And, the
proceeding this morning is to address the Settlemen
that's been proposed and other issues in the Order
Notice for those who aren't parties to the Settleme
Agreement.

And, | think, again, we're trying to
give you leeway here, but we are not going to turn
into a proceeding to address everything else that t
Companies may legitimately have issues of dispute o
that may continue after today. We need to get on w
addressing the Settlement and the issues raised in
Order of Notice. So, if you can move on and contin
summarize --

MR. BERSAK: | fully understand, madam
Chair. | believe that the Order of Notice dealt wi
guestions regarding the conduct of PNE and Resident
in the marketplace with respect to the treatment of

customers. And, what | was going to discuss deals

And,
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directly with that situation, directly with hundred s of
customers who are continuing to be with the wrong
supplier.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Is it addressed in
your written statement?

MR. BERSAK: It's in the addendum to the
written statement, madam Chair.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: "Addendum" meaning
part of what's here?

MR. BERSAK: Meaning the "Addendum to
Public Comment of PSNH Re: Settlement Stipulation”. It's
a separate page. Do you have that?

MR. FOSSUM: No.

CMSR. SCOTT: | don't have that.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: No. | have seven

pages.
MR. BERSAK: Well, there's another page
and a half.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right.
MR. BERSAK: We were trying to react to
-- you know, we were asked to be here as witnesses. When
we came to the office this morning we were faced wi th a
Settlement. We're doing the best we can, given wha twe

have to work with.
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[WITNESS PANEL: Noonan|Mullen]

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | understand. Can
you just summarize your position in the next couple
minutes, we're going to move on?

MR. BERSAK: Yes. That we believe that

any settlement of this matter should contain provis ions
which fully protect customers, that's all customers , and
fully protects PSNH, which was harmed by the volunt ary
business decision of PNE. That PNE has made statem ents
which were clearly erroneous to try to cast blame o n the
Company. And, we would like the Stipulations to re flect
the fact that their statements were, in fact, incor rect,
so the record in this proceeding clearly demonstrat es that
PSNH did what it was supposed to do, when it was su pposed
to do it, in full cooperation with the Staff and th is
Commission, to try to deal with a situation which n either

PSNH nor Staff created.

And, we'd really like the opportunity to

continue with our public statement, because we thin kit
will be instructive for the Commission in order to ask
guestions of the panel that's going to testify rega rding
the Settlement, as to whether the Settlement is, in fact,
a proper way of resolving the issues that are conta ined in

the Order of Notice.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. Is there
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anyone else making a public statement?

(No verbal response)

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: If not, then,

Mr. Speidel, will you call your witnesses please.

MR. SPEIDEL: | call Steven Mullen and

Amanda Noonan to the stand for testimony on behalf

Staff of the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commiss

(Whereupon Amanda O. Noonan and

of the

ion.

Steven E. Ml | en were duly sworn by the

Court Reporter.)
AVANDA O NOONAN, SWORN
STEVEN E. MULLEN, SWORN
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. SPEIDEL:

Q. Mr. Mullen and Ms. Noonan, could you each please
describe your full name and your responsibilities a
the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission.

A. (Mullen) My name is Steven Mullen. I'm the Assis
Director of the Electric Division. Working with th
Director of the Electric Division, manage the
day-to-day activities of those in the Division, rev
various utility-related filings, deal with policy
matters, and whatever else comes across my desk.

A. (Noonan) My name is Amanda Noonan. I'm the Direc

tant

iew

tor of
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the Consumer Affairs Division at the Commission. T
Consumer Affairs Division is responsible for the
conduct of consumer-related policies and also deali
with consumer issues, complaints, and questions.
Mr. Mullen and Ms. Noonan, do you happen to have
well, at this juncture, it might be a little bit of
pointless exercise, but we have two filed versions
the Settlement Agreement. We have one version with
cover letter bearing my name, dated March the 26th
is marked as a "public, redacted version"?

(Mullen) Yes.

(Noonan) Yes.

And, the second is a version with my cover letter
March the 26th that reads "confidential version".

you have those two versions before you?

(Mullen) Yes.

(Noonan) Yes.

MR. SPEIDEL: Now, Commissioners, |
suppose that the confidential version would remain
same, the public redacted version would change on t
basis of this Bench ruling. But shall | mark these
exhibits, to just indicate as to what matters we're
dealing with, and have a substitution exhibit provi

should we have a record request for the public vers
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[WITNESS PANEL: Noonan|Mullen]

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Apparently, we have
another one that's just arrived. | don't know if y ou've
got --

MR. SPEIDEL: | haven't done a
line-by-line compare.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right.

MR. SPEIDEL: And, it's not executed.

These versions are executed.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Well, we
should certainly put in the first and second, Exhib itl
was the redacted and Exhibit 2 was the confidential
version?

MR. SPEIDEL: That's correct.

(The documents, as described, were

herewith marked as Exhi bit 1and

Exhi bit 2, respectively, for

identification.)

MR. SPEIDEL: Now, Clerk, do you happen
to have those on hand or shall | distribute them to the
Commissioners and to you?

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: We have those.

MR. SPEIDEL: Excellent. Thank you so
much.

BY MR. SPEIDEL:
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o > » O

>

Are you both familiar with these two documents?
(Noonan) Yes.
(Mullen) Yes.
Were you involved in the overall negotiations tha
to the preparation of these two documents?
(Mullen) Yes.
(Noonan) Yes.
Very good. Now, Mr. Mullen, would you be prepare
give the Commission and the attendees today a gener
overview of how this Settlement Agreement works in
coordination with the Stipulation of Facts that is
appended hereto?
(Mullen) Certainly.
Thank you.
(Mullen) As stated in the first paragraph of the
Settlement Agreement, the "Settlement Agreement
constitutes this document, along with an incorporat
Stipulation of Facts", which is "attached as
Exhibit A."

Let me start with the Stipulation of
Facts first. So, if you turn to that Stipulation o
Facts, which it is not attached to the new document
that you have just received some language stricken.

But, for point of reference, if we turn to Exhibit

t led

dto

al

ed

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

44
[WITNESS PANEL: Noonan|Mullen]

There's a separate -- there's a separate attachment for
the Stipulation of Facts. Rather than go through t his
point by point, it essentially goes through the

timeline of various events that have transpired,

beginning with the registration of PNE and Resident

Power, continuing up to the present time. As Chair man

Ignatius mentioned, especially in the early part of

this year, there's been a lot of documents filed ba ck
and forth. This kind of relates some of that histo ry.
Rather than spending a lot of time going through po int

by point, if there's particular questions on any of
these provisions, we'd be happy to address them.
But the Stipulation of Facts basically

says "Well, here's how we got to where we are today

And, if you turn back to the Settlement Agreement, the
Settlement Agreement says "Well, here's where we ar e
today. What do we do going forward?" And, that's kind
of how these documents work and a brief description of

how they were put together.

Yes. Thank you. Ms. Noonan, could you please tu rn to
point 2.6 within Exhibit 1 of this document, this

Settlement Agreement.

(Noonan) Yes.

Could you provide a little bit of background abou t what

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}
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A.

you expect will occur within the context of the poi
2.6?
(Noonan) Certainly. One of the main concerns in
whole proceeding was adequate notice to customers,
| believe someone indicated earlier there was
considerable confusion for customers about the even
as they unfolded. And, so, this notice would be so
type of factual description of the events, with
information to provide customers with assurance, an
the market with assurance, that similar such events
wouldn't necessarily trigger similar outcomes, and
customers, you know, have a better sense and better
understanding of the market and how it works, and w
their expectations should be.

In addition to this notice, in the
Stipulation of Facts, Resident Power also agreed to
provide notices going forward disclosing its
affiliation with PNE to customers appropriately, in
accordance with the rules. So, there would also be
that notice as well.
Now, Ms. Noonan, there is some considerable amoun
customer compensation that has been agreed to as pa
of the Settlement, is that correct?

(Noonan) Yes.
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And, that would be outlined in general terms in
Subparts 2.1 through 2.37?
(Noonan) Yes, that's correct.
And, the amount of customer compensation is provi
what basis? Is it a flat fee, a flat payment, so t
speak?
(Noonan) It is a flat payment per customer.
And, that would be $9.50?
(Noonan) Yes. That is correct.
So, in the aggregate, the amount of customer
compensation would be how much roughly, on the basi
the number of customers? It would probably be in t
high five figures, correct?
(Noonan) | believe it would be in the ballpark of
$70,000.
MR. SPEIDEL: Thank you very much. |
think, in general terms, that would conclude Staff'
direct questioning of these witnesses. We would li
make them available for cross-examination by partie
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Allright. Let's
first have questioning from the Companies, and then
to OCA.
MR. CARTER: At this time, the Company

has no questions for cross-examination. Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Well,
this is your only time. So, | just want to make su re,
you're not assuming you're having another round thr ough?

MR. CARTER: What I'm -- I'm envisioning

a scenario where, if a new issue is raised on quest ioning
by, for example, OCA, which opened up a new avenue, we
would be prepared to address those new questions. But --

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. You
should -- don't assume that.
MR. CARTER: Okay.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: We don't always

follow the "open door" rule. That, if there are th ings
that you know you would like to address, you should go
ahead. It's possible, after redirect by Staff, tha t there
might be some opportunity, but we tend not to do th at.
Otherwise, we'd be looping around forever. So, if there's
anything you know that you expect to hear questioni ng on
from OCA, and you want to address now, you should g 0 ahead
and do that.

MR. CARTER: | can't address that,

because | don't know what OCA's concerns are. So, we are
supportive of this Agreement, we are supportive of the
Stipulations. And, | have nothing further to add, based

on what | know to be true right now. Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Ms. Chamberlin.
MS. CHAMBERLIN: Thank you.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. CHAMBERLIN:

Q.  When you talk about the number of customers that
affected by the PNE default, we're generally using
round numbers about -- we talk about 8,500 were go
to be transferred"?

A.  (Noonan) Yes. To the best of my knowledge, those
round numbers. I've never seen an exact figure.

Q. Do you have the ability to identify specific cust
accounts at this point?

(Noonan) I'm not sure | understand your question.

Q. Well, when it comes to doing a refund, they have
to specific people, and we can no longer talk in
general terms. And, I'm wondering, at this point,
you have the ability to identify those specific
accounts?

A. (Noonan) Yes. | think, with the information that
been obtained, the Company can ascertain which
customers were transferred successfully to FairPoin
without interruption and which customers were not.

Q. And, do you agree that the customers that were

transferred successfully to FairPoint got the benef
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of their bargain and will not be receiving
compensation?

(Noonan) Yes. That's correct.

And, is it correct to say that the exact amount o
financial harm per customer varies?

(Noonan) Yes.

And, the number that you reached, "9.50", is ther
calculation that went behind that or was that a pro
of settlement?

(Noonan) It was a product of settlement.

Would you agree that one way to measure harm for
customers that were not transferred is to take the
price of the contract that they thought they were
getting and get the difference with the contract pr
that they got with default customers, and that

difference is a measure of financial harm?

(Noonan) That's one component of the measure, yes

And, then, another component could be the length

time that they were on default service, when they d
not wish to be on default service?

(Noonan) Yes. That would be another component.

Is it correct to say that customers have responde

differently to being placed on default service? No

every customer has responded exactly the same way?
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MR. SPEIDEL: | would -- | don't object

to this question, but I'd like to remind Ms. Chambe rlin
that my witnesses might not have total knowledge of every
specific customer response. And, it would be ill-a dvised

to testify as to that, as to every single customer
response.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Well, I think, to
the extent they actually know from customer contact S, it's
a fair question.

MR. SPEIDEL: Okay.

BY THE W TNESS:

A.

(Noonan) While | haven't reviewed all the contact s that
have come in in the past, at this point, perhaps 45

days, | think that there are some customers that ma de
one decision, certainly other customers that made a

different decision.

BY MS. CHAMBERLIN:

Q.

A.

So, some customers have stayed on default, to the best
of your knowledge?

(Noonan) | don't have that. | don't have that

knowledge. | would have to go back and verify with my
staff that have spoken with these customers. | bel ieve
that to be true, but | don't have that right in fro nt
of me.
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Are you aware that some customers have exercised
and gone to a different supplier than the default?
(Noonan) Yes.
As part of your responses to data requests from t
Company, you were asked to provide customer contact
data, is that correct?
(Noonan) Yes.
And, if | show you these responses, I'd just ask
you identify that that's what you produced?
(Atty. Chamberlin handing document to

Witness Noonan.)

BY THE W TNESS:

A.

(Noonan) Yes.

BY MS. CHAMBERLIN:

Q.
A.

o » o »

Okay.

(Noonan) That's correct.

And, some of these are labeled as responses regar
"Resident Power" or contacts regarding "Resident
Power", correct?

(Noonan) Yes.

And, some are identified as contacts regarding "P
(Noonan) Yes.

And, then, some are just "general inquiry" contac

"inquiry about the situation" contacts?
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A. (Noonan) Yes. The discovery requests, there were two
specific requests. The first one requested the
contacts from customers during a specific time peri od
identified in the Staff memo, and that's 1. -- 1-1.
And, then, the response to 1-2 provided the Residen t
Power contacts separately from the PNE contacts.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: Your Honor, not all of

the customer information has been redacted from the se,
which is why I'm not offering them as an exhibit. | would
like a fully redacted version to be entered as an e xhibit

or reserved as an exhibit.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | appreciate your

caution about that, because we do protect customer

information. And, if something was inadvertently n ot
redacted, we wouldn't want to put that into a publi c
record. So, thank you for that. | guess what woul d make
sense is, during a break, perhaps to go over that w ith

Ms. Noonan or Mr. Speidel, or later in the day, so that
the documents submitted to the record don't inadver tently

disclose things it should not.

But, before you move on, should we
reserve a -- you want to put the entire stack in,
ultimately, when they've been scrutinized?

MS. CHAMBERLIN: Yes. | was proposing
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to put the entire stack in.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. And, do
they need to be separated into subsets or could the y all
be marked as --
MS. CHAMBERLIN: For my purposes, |
don't think they need to be separated into subsets.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Let's mark for

identification the stack of customer contact inform ation
submitted by Ms. Noonan in response to discovery re quests
as Exhibit 3, even though we're sort of holding tha t

number for when the full stack comes in.
(The document, as described, was
herewith marked as Exhi bit 3 for
identification.)
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. Please
proceed.
BY MS. CHAMBERLIN:
Q. So, it's fair to say that the -- or, is it fair t 0 say
that the PNE default generated a large number of
customer contacts to the Consumer Affairs Division of
the PUC?
(Noonan) Yes. That's correct.

Q. And, generally, people were confused?

A. (Noonan) Yes. That's correct.
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Q.  When you look at the Settlement Agreement and the
proposal for compensation, does that compensation
represent -- | mean, what does that compensation
represent to you?

A.  (Noonan) The $9.50 is a product of settlement. B
compensation to customers recognizes the fact that
their transfer from PNE to FairPoint was interrupte
a result of PNE's default with ISO. And, as a resu
those customers wound up on default service. And,
this compensation is towards that difference, betwe
the default service price and what customers would
seen had the transfer continued uninterrupted.

MS. CHAMBERLIN: One moment.
(Atty. Chamberlin conferring with Mr.
Eckberg.)

BY MS. CHAMBERLIN:

Q. Have you reached a determination of how that paym
going to be made? Are you issuing a refund? Arey
iIssuing checks? Or, are you --

A. (Noonan) | would defer to PNE on this specificall
But my understanding is it would be a check cut to
customers. But | would defer to them on that quest

Q. So, a check cut and individually mailed to the va

accounts?
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(Noonan) That's my understanding. But, again, |

to them with the final.

Okay. And, one of the requirements to receive $9
to simply waive any right to file any future
complaints, is that correct?

(Noonan) That is in the Settlement, yes.

Okay. The Settlement Agreement says "provide
instructions”. Has that been determined what that
going to be? This is Paragraph 2.2, Article Il. T
will "provide instructions to affected customers".
(Noonan) There were some conversations in the cou
settlement regarding that, but there hasn't been
anything finalized that would be public at this poi
And, is the same true of the "notice to customers
that is subject to further discussion?

(Noonan) Yes. The general concept regarding the
is what | described earlier. The final language of
notice has not been resolved. However, the notice
required by the Settlement Agreement to go out to
customers no later than April 12th.

And, is it anticipated that the notice will provi
information on the affiliation between Resident Pow
and PNE to customers?

(Noonan) That would be part of the conversation i

defer
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determining the language of the notice.

Q. Areyou aware of any notice to customers that hav
or, to the Commission and to customers that describ
the affiliation between PNE and Resident Power?

A. (Noonan) I'm sorry, did you say "to customers" or
the Commission™?

Q.  Well, let's start with the customers. Did you is
are you aware of any issued notice to customers of
relationship?

A. (Noonan) The Commission posted a notice on its we
on or around February 22nd, to provide customers wi
information about what was transpiring. | don't re
offhand if that notice cited the affiliation betwee
PNE and Resident Power or simply cited the events t
had transpired, and what customers needed to do at
point.

Q. And, are you aware of any communication between
Resident Power and PNE directly to customers that
describe that relationship?

(Noonan) | am not, no.

Q. In terms of going forward, do you believe there a
some changes to the process that could be made to m
this more smooth in the future?

A.  (Mullen) When you say "make this more smooth", yo

"tO

sue or

this

bsite
th

call

hat

that

re

ake

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

57
[WITNESS PANEL: Noonan|Mullen]

know, I think, as laid out in the Stipulation of Fa
when we go through what's going on, in terms of the
situation that happened, you know, there's really n
there was really no playbook for this type of
situation. And, when | say "this type of situation
you know, we started with a transfer of customers f
one supplier to another. In the course of that
happening, then we had the default at ISO-New Engla
That created a situation, like | say, there's no
playbook for that, and we haven't experienced that
this state before. So, I think, to make this go
smoother, | think that this has certainly been a
learning process for all parties involved. You kno
and | think as these events occurred, and, you know
this was a very fluid process. And, | think you ha
the various parties, whether it be PNE, Resident Po
FairPoint Energy, PSNH, and Staff, of all trying to
"Well, this is going on. How do we deal with this?
And, | think, you know, I think that everybody was
doing their best to try to deal with this in the mo
efficient way, but it was a very fluid process.

So, certainly, trying to make something
like this go smoother, I'm hoping we don't have

anything like this again, but it certainly has been

cts

rom

nd.

Wer,

say

st

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

58
[WITNESS PANEL: Noonan|Mullen]

process where | think all parties involved have
certainly learned from it and can use that knowledg e
going forward.
Q. Did any customers complain of losing power?
(Noonan) No.
So, you have no awareness of any customers being
without power, --

(Noonan) No --

Q.  -- dueto the PNE default?
A. (Noonan) Thank you. Due to this issue, no. We h ave
received no phone calls of customers receiving powe r--

or, losing power.

Q. And, thisis a, as Mr. Mullen pointed out, a case of
first impression in New Hampshire, a supplier has n ever
gone in default before that affected competition an d
choice?

A. (Noonan) That's correct.
MS. CHAMBERLIN: | have nothing further.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you.
Commissioner Harrington.
CMSR. HARRINGTON: Good morning.
WITNESS MULLEN: Good morning.
WITNESS NOONAN: Good morning.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON:
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Q. First, | wanted to start with the Settlement Agre
itself, I had just a couple of questions on how tha
would work. Referring to Section 2.4, which | assu
you have in front of you.

(Noonan) Yes.

And, it says "Prior to resuming operations as a C

New Hampshire, PNE will establish an escrow account
the minimum amount of $200,000 in satisfaction of t
requirements set forth", and then it lists a couple

the PUC rules. The first question, | guess, is tha
provision the only thing that's preventing PNE from
reestablishing itself or resuming operations as a S

[ CEPS] in New Hampshire?

A. (Mullen) Well, in the Commission's Order of Notic
that directed PNE to cease enrolling new customers,
for the New Hampshire utilities to not accept any
enrollments, to the extent there were any from PNE.
So, to the extent of implementing -- or, establishi
that new escrow agreement, | don't think there's
anything else that would prohibit that.

Q. So, their issues with ISO-New England have all be
resolved?

A. (Mullen) Yes, they have. And, | don't remember t

exact date, but it was -- it was, | think, earlier
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week that the default, the ISO-New England financia
default was fully cured.

Okay. And, that means they're basically approved
ISO-New England at the present time to be a competi
supplier?

(Mullen) Well, I'm not -- | don't have particular
knowledge of all the ISO rules, but | do know that
financial default was fully cured.

Okay. And, I notice in here the minimum amount i
"$200,000", where you go to the PUC rules, Puc
2003.03(a)(2), it talks about "the greater of", and

is "$100,000". Can you describe the purpose of set
it at "200,000" in the Settlement Agreement?
(Mullen) Yes. Let me just put the rules in front

me.

Sure.

(Mullen) But I can tell you the "$200,000" isar

of settlement. But it says further that "PNE shall
increase the amount of said escrow as required by P
2003.03(a)(2)." Which basically reads that any
required financial surety "Be the greater of" eithe
"100,000; 20 percent of the supplier's estimated gr
receipts in its first", that's "estimated", for "it

first full year of operation; or (c) 20 percent of
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their actual gross receipts for their preceding yea

operation;" and "not to exceed 350,000".

So, what the Settlement basically says

is they're going to start at 200,000. And, to the
extent that their sales become higher, they will
increase the amount -- it requires an increase, and
accordance with the rules, they will do so.

Okay. So, is it reasonable to believe that they
probably end up with a surety somewhere in excess o
$200,0007?

(Mullen) That all goes to where sales go between
and by the time their registration expires.

Okay. But, if they weren't to go to that, then t

higher provision in the rule would stay in effect u
whenever?

(Mullen) When you say "this higher provision" --

Well, where it says, where you have the minimum -
“"the greater of 100,000" in the rules, and it's a
"minimum of 200,000" in the Settlement Agreement?
(Mullen) The 200,000 would stay.

Okay. And, just one other clarification. Going
Section 2.5, which you've just referred to, where i
says "until further notice, New Hampshire electric

utilities would not be required to accept or proces
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A.

new customer enrollments from PNE." If this Settle

Agreement were to be approved by the Commission, wo

the utilities then be required to acceptitoris i

the utility's option?

(Mullen) Well, 1 think there would be nothing
restricting -- | mean, PNE would be a registered
supplier. And, as such, any enrollments from a
supplier to PSNH, to Unitil, to Liberty, to the Co-
they would go through the process just like anybody
else. It's an automatic -- they get an EDI request
through the system from a supplier, and that just g
through automatically.

Okay. Thank you. Just kind of changing subjects
There's been a lot of discussion, we've heard quite
bit from Public Service and some of the other parti
on how much harm was given to the customers. And,
trying to just get a handle around the sources of t
harm. And, the one | can come up with, maybe there
others you can help me with, but it would appear th
if somebody was on -- received their energy from PN
they were paying a lower rate than the default serv
through Public Service. So, if, because of the PNE
default, they were switched back to default service

they would incur some additional cost associated wi
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o » o »

that increase energy rate?

(Noonan) That's correct.

Okay. And, | believe the difference between the
rates was somewhere in the range of a cent to a cen
and a half a kilowatt-hour, is that in the ballpark
(Noonan) Roughly two cents.

Roughly two cents, okay. So, at two cents for a
kilowatt-hour per month customer, which I think is
we use as the average usually, that comes out to ab
$10 that it would cost them for a given month.
(Noonan) Yes.

Is that correct?

(Noonan) Uh-huh.

Okay. So, the 9.50 is within the range of the to
damage they'd receive in a month?

(Noonan) Yes.

And, is there any damages or harm that they would
received?

(Noonan) For customers of PNE that failed to tran
to FairPoint?

Yes.

(Noonan) No.

Okay. And, let me bring your attention to RSA 37

Section I, which is the restructuring statute. An
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A.

one of the things it talks about in there, in fact

says "customers should expect to be responsible for
consequences of their choices." So, when somebody
chooses to leave a public utility, such as Public
Service, or Unitil, for that matter, and go to a
competitive supplier, they get a better rate, at le

they do right now. But one of the consequences of
choice is that | guess it's more likely that a
competitive supplier may have financial problems, s
as experienced by PNE, than a public utility would.
Would you say that's an accurate statement?
(Mullen) Yes.

Okay. So, customers who chose to go to PNE, and
are expected to be responsible for the consequences
that choice, should not necessarily say "oh, we hav
be compensated for every penny we might have lost i
had the ability to go to a second competitive
supplier”, because, if they stayed with Public Serv
they would have paid more. Is that correct? For
whatever time they were at PNE, they paid less.
(Mullen) Well, yes. And, you know, there are lot

-- but there are a lot of facts and circumstances
involved in this case that, you know, get into the

default issues and reverting to default service and
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that. So, taking all those facts into consider --
circumstances into consideration, that's how we arr
at where we did in the Settlement Agreement.
Q. | guess my point is, where the law says "the cust
should be responsible for the consequences of their
choices", one of the consequences of that choice wo
be that a competitive supplier could have financial
IS, | don't know what the correct term here is, has
higher possibility of suffering financial problems
a public utility is. And, if those result in havin
pay the default service rates or go back to default
service rates, that would be one of the consequence
those choices. Does that make sense?
A. (Mullen) I think those types of circumstances are
types of things you find in any competitive market.
CMSR. HARRINGTON: Okay. All right.
Thank you. That's all the questions | had.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you.
Commissioner Scott.
CMSR. SCOTT: Thank you. And, good
morning.
WITNESS MULLEN: Good morning.
WITNESS NOONAN: Good morning.

BY CMSR. SCOTT:
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On the Settlement Agreement, | just want to make
fully understand it. Section 2.1 only applies to t
"placed on default service with PSNH on February 20
It doesn't mention any other dates. Does that excl
anybody who was involuntarily put to default servic
(Noonan) No. In order to comply with ISO regulat
PSNH had to accept load responsibility of all those
customers, and all those customers were transferred
of February 20th.

And, was there anybody transferred before involun
that didn't go to FairPoint Energy?

(Noonan) Not that we're aware of, no.

So, I'll ask it a different way, which is really

question. Are there any customers that were impact
that you're not aware of being covered by this
Agreement?

(Mullen) No.

Okay. Thank you. On the -- you've kind of allud

it, on the mechanism, am | correct from your earlie

statements, that the exact mechanism how these impa

customers would be -- receive this payment would be
made is not yet defined, is that correct?
(Noonan) That's correct.

Okay. And, I'll try to put this in the form of a
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question. Understanding Commissioner Harrington's
comments about the statute and certain element of r
IS not one of the components of what we're talking
about today is the risk also of customer confusion
correspondence, so that you have, as a customer, yo
have a -- obviously, you can do certain things and
elect to do certain things to have a competitive
supplier as a customer, but you need to know what -
the background of what's going on in order to make
informed decision, is that a fair statement, as a
component of what we're discussing today?

A. (Noonan) Yes, | think so.

CMSR. SCOTT: I think that's all my
guestions, too. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. | have a
few questions as well on the proposal.

BY CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS:

Q. One is just a very practical one. There's a refe
in 2.3 to being funds -- funds being held by counse
for PNE. And, in 2. -- well, | guess I'll just sti
with that one. In this case, is it fair that we've
a number of different people representing the two
companies and multiple law firms and attorneys?

A. (Noonan) Yes.
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A.

So, the reference to "counsel for PNE" holding in
"IOLTA account", who are we referring to here?
(Mullen) That would be the firm of Hinckley, Alle
Snyder.

Ms. Noonan, you had said that a rough ballpark wa
thought it was going to be around $70,000, that may
the total, if you work your way through 9.50 times
number of customers. What happens if there is
remaining money in that escrow account? If it does
come to be about $70,000, and there's $100,000 in t
escrow account, does the Settlement Agreement
anticipate any disposition of that remaining $30,00
(Noonan) Yes, it does. And, Paragraph 2.3 descri
that process. So that, once all one-time customer
payments have been made, the funds, the full 100,00
the IOLTA account, will be released back to PNE.
(Mullen) So, essentially, the payment to customer
would be done separately from the $100,000. And, o
that's all accomplished, then the funds would be
released to the Company.

Oh. Rather than reduce that account along the wa
comes from another source, and then is replenished,
effect, from the $100,000 being held?

(Noonan) That's correct.
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(Mullen) Exactly. The payments would be a condit
precedent to releasing the money.

Is there a time limit on when those refunds will
made?

(Noonan) We did not establish one in here. That
perhaps a good point to be discussed.

Did you have a sense of what the time period to
commence and complete the refunds would be?
(Noonan) Our expectation was that it would be don
quickly as possible. And, perhaps that that's a go
piece to incorporate in the notice to PNE customers
It would have to -- there would have to be perhaps
two iterations; one to all former PNE customers and
to those PNE customers who were affected by this
interruption of the transfer, or could be a separat
notice that would go out to just the group of
customers. But our expectation is that it would ha
soon.

Is the notice called for in 2.6 a requirement bef

the refunds are made?

(Noonan) No, not necessarily.

Ms. Noonan, you were asked a question that, | thi

from the OCA, under 2.1, that, and it may have just

been the wording, and not meaning to make a substan

ion
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distinction. | think Ms. Chamberlin asked you that
condition of receiving the $9.50 refund was that a
customer would have to "waive future claims against
PNE." Is that what the language of the Settlement
Agreement says? Is it "future claims" or is it "cl
relating to the customer's placement on default
service"?

(Noonan) It's claims relating to the placement on
default service.

So, if six months from now a customer of PNE, who
received this payment, had a new issue unrelated to
what this is all about, would they have a right to

a claim against them according to the Settlement
Agreement?

(Noonan) Yes. The language of the Settlement Agr
would not restrict that.

The attachment to the Settlement Agreement, Facts
section, on Page 3, Paragraph 14, says that "PNE ha
submitted a request to modify its registration to
indicate that it intends to serve both commercial a
industrial customers”, as well as "residential
customers", correct?

(Mullen) Correct.

And, that that's now under review by the Commissi

aims

make
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A.

(Mullen) Correct.

Until a determination has been made, is PNE autho
to solicit new commercial and industrial customers?
(Mullen) Until that came in, their current regist

did not indicate that they were going to serve
commercial and industrial, but | don't expect that
be a lengthy review process.

All right. And, so, clearly, there was a differe
between what the registration stated and what the
Company's business actually entailed, and that's
addressed here. But, during the pendency of this
review period for the new modification of the
registration, is PNE authorized to enroll new
commercial or industrial customers?

(Mullen) I think, upon the Commission approving t
pending request, that would certainly clear things
Okay. But, prior to the Commission determination
whether that's a matter of weeks or months, is PNE
authorized to enroll new commercial or industrial
customers?

(Mullen) Well, 1 think that that also ties into t
establishment of the escrow account, which is in
another section. Because | think, if | read Sectio

-- 2.4 of the Settlement, it says "prior to resumin

rized
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operations as a CEPS in New Hampshire, PNE will
establish an escrow account in the minimum amount o
200,000." So, I think, with the timing of all thes

things coming together, | think that can all take p

at roughly about the same time.

So, | think that, when it says "prior to

resuming operations”, that in and of itself leads t
that they wouldn't be enrolling customers prior to
establishing the escrow account. And, during that
time, too, we can deal with the commercial and
industrial issue as well.

Thank you. The facts that are attached to the
Agreement may not necessarily comport with the fact
understood by other people who are not participants
the Settlement. Would you agree?

(Mullen) | suppose that depends on what facts you
referring to, and which facts you aren't. There's
certainly a lot more facts that the parties involve

this Stipulation are aware of, having spent many da
and long nights and phone calls, and going through
the details.

The Settlement Agreement that's proposed, am | co
that it would resolve all questions of administrati

penalties against PNE and Resident having to do wit

lace

the
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©

o> 0 » »

the issues raised in the Staff's memorandum and the
Order of Notice?

(Noonan) Yes. That's correct.

It would resolve the question of the registration
status of PNE and Resident, and from, Mr. Mullen, y
comments just now sort of set a path for wrapping u
final issues of authorization and escrow account?
(Mullen) Yes.

And, once those issues were resolved, it would gr
PNE, not the Settlement, but it sort of sets out a

for giving PNE the ability to again be enrolling ne
customers?

(Mullen) That's correct.

It would also resolve retail customers' complaint
claims related to being placed on default service?
(Noonan) Yes.

(Mullen) To the extent they accept the payment.
Yes.

(Mullen) That's correct.

Let me ask you some things that, as | read it, it

not address, and you tell me if I'm mistaken. Itd

not speak for or attempt to establish anything as t
the ISO-New England issues, other than to note that

financial default has been cured?
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A.

(Mullen) I think it establishes that there was a
default, and that the default has been cured, corre
If ISO-New England had any other issues, they wou
continue to be things for ISO to pursue?

(Mullen) Yes.

It does not attempt to resolve any issues that PS
have against PNE or Resident?

(Mullen) No, it does not.

And, it does not attempt to resolve any issues th

or Resident may have against PSNH?

(Noonan) That's correct.

It does not attempt to resolve or waive claims on
future conduct by any of the Companies involved sho
something arise in the future?

(Noonan) That's correct.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Commissioner

Harrington, another question?

CMSR. HARRINGTON: Yes.

BY CMSR. HARRINGTON:

Q.

A.

Just on the timing of the payment. | believe you
that the total amounts of payments covered under
Section 2.1 would be around $70,0007?

(Noonan) Yes. It's approximately 7,300 customers

would be receiving these refunds.
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And, the amount in escrow is $100,000?

(Noonan) Yes.

So, | guess it would be logical to assume that th
Company would be wanting to make those payments as
as possible so they could get their $30,000 back?
(Noonan) Well, the full $100,000 would be held in
IOLTA account by Hinckley Allen. And, so, in order
get that full $100,000 back, the Company would need
make those refund payments to all affected customer
Okay. So, | guess that even reemphasizes my poin
that it would be very much in their benefit to make
payments in an expeditious manner?

(Noonan) Absolutely.

CMSR. HARRINGTON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you.

Commissioner Scott.

you

CMSR. SCOTT: Thank you. And, thank

, madam Chair, for the re -- chance to re-questi

ask.

BY CMSR. SCOTT:

Q.

A.
Q.

On the Settlement Agreement, Section 2.2, regardi
“instructions to affected customers".
(Noonan) Yes.

Is there any expectation that PNE will be working
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the Staff on those instructions?

(Noonan) We did not have specific conversations a
that. We did have some settlement conversations ab
the general content of the instructions.

And, is it -- | understand this to be developed,
understand that part from your earlier responses.

the instructions basically as simple as -- could th

be as simple as "if you cash the check, that's your
acceptance of this waiver", if you will?

(Noonan) From Staff's perspective, a key element
instructions would be certainly disclosing to the
customers that, by cashing the check, they're waivi
any claims they could make regarding their placemen
default service.

Okay. And, in answer to Commissioner Harrington'
question, it's implied, but | just wanted to hear i

So, before the 100,000 in escrow would be released
the Company, they have to make some proof that they
-- to the Staff that they have effectively paid the
impacted customers. Is that a true statement?
(Mullen) The Settlement doesn't have any particul
wording about "proof to Staff". | would expect tha
they would notify us that it had occurred, but it w

not specifically covered.
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Q.

A.

Perhaps not "proof”, but some kind of -- there ne

be some communication, is that correct, between PNE
Staff?

(Noonan) Well, again, you know, the Settlement do
have that specific language in there. However, | w
hazard a guess that there would be communication to
Staff, and, at a minimum, you know, some type of
verification to Hinckley Allen, as the holder of th
client IOLTA account that they had met the terms
required to receive those funds.

So, that's certainly an expectation of Staff?
(Witness Noonan nodding in the affirmative).
(Mullen) Yes. And, | would say that considering

of the other terms of the Settlement, and some of t
other collaboration that's going to be on notice to
customers and all that, that will take place over t
next couple of weeks or so. | think, in the course
those discussions, the subject will certainly be
addressed.

Great. And, | think, lastly, perhaps an unfair
question I'll ask Staff is, given these recent even
do you feel our current 2000 rules, the Puc 2000 ru
are sufficient?

(Noonan) Well, we've certainly had many conversat

eds to
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about that, and think that there are opportunities to
revisit those rules and see what we can improve upo n.
CMSR. SCOTT: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. Any
redirect from Mr. Speidel?
MR. SPEIDEL: One very quick redirect
guestion regarding Item 2.3.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. SPEIDEL:
Q. There is a phrase that reads, and either witness can

respond, "and shall be held by counsel for PNE in a

client IOLTA account pending the delivery”. | thin K,
would it be fair to say that, in Staff's perspectiv e,
"pending the delivery", there is an implication tha t

the delivery would have to actually be made and
verified to the counsel for the Companies before th at
delivery is noted, and also the transfer of the
$100,000 is made?
A. (Mullen) Yes.
A. (Noonan) Yes.
MR. SPEIDEL: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. Then,
unless | hear otherwise, the witnesses are excused. I

appreciate your testimony. We have a couple of pro cedural
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matters to take care of. | take it there's no othe
witnesses, no other evidence to be put on?
(No verbal response)
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: We want to be
certain that Exhibit 3, the customer contacts infor
is scrutinized and submitted in a clean fashion, if
there's any redactions that should have been made.
you again for noting that, Ms. Chamberlin.
We also need to decide what we're doing
with the newly submitted Settlement Agreement that
removes, just this morning, the one phrase that rem
redacted. The way it came in this morning from
Mr. Deschenes it appears to remove those words, but
way we do redactions so you can tell is you have a
there that -- oh, I'm sorry. I'm forgetting what w
It's not confidential, it's not redacted, it's stri
CMSR. HARRINGTON: It's gone away.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: So, | think we, if
anyone's had a chance to double-check and make sure
this comports with what they thought we were doing,
looks acceptable to me. Can we substitute the Sett
Agreement with --

MR. SPEIDEL: If | may --

mation,
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anything. Let's putitin as a separate document.
MR. SPEIDEL: Yes.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: The only problem is
we don't have the Statement of Facts. But we can m ake a
copy of that and attach it, so that it's the full
document. Is that acceptable to everyone?

MR. SPEIDEL: Well, yes. There's a

couple of issues. | haven't, Chairman, executed th IS
version of the document. What would be perhaps a b etter
approach is, given that the confidential, so to spe ak,
version had been executed and the public version ha d been

executed, what we could do is we could go back and

essentially have a final review of this up-to-date

version, the "universal" version, and have each par ty
execute that one and submit that as a single Exhibi t3.

And, then, the other exhibits could be stricken fro m the
record, because there wouldn't be any more confiden tial or
public versions. They would include the stipulatio ns,
which would also have to be appended. If we could rely on
the executions of March 26, that's just one more ti mesaver
that we could do. And, Staff could resubmit the pa ckage
of documents to the Commission for its consideratio n.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: | think, because

there's so much discussion about it in the record, it
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might be easier just to keep 1 and 2 as they alread
are, --

MR. SPEIDEL: Okay.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: -- and make the new

one "Exhibit 4", and make clear that it is the gove
document at this point. It will need execution, as
say, and the attachment of statement -- excuse me -
stipulated facts. If we could ask the parties and
to work on submitting that by the end of today, --
MR. SPEIDEL: Sure.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: -- that would be
appropriate. So, let's mark that for identificatio
"Exhibit 4".
MR. SPEIDEL: Would it be Exhibit 3,
madam Chairman?
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: No. Three is the
stack of customer contacts.
MR. SPEIDEL: Oh, I'm sorry. Just
wanted to clear that up. Thank you.
(The document, as described, was
herewith marked as Exhi bit 4 for
identification.)
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: And, that's all |

have, is those four documents, three of which are v
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of the same. So, unless there are any other exhibi
there any opposition to striking the identification
those and making them full exhibits?
MR. CARTER: None from the Companies.
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Seeing
none, we will do that. And, my hope again is that
Exhibit 3 can be submitted by the end of today as w
with any further redactions that are required for t
Then, the final thing today would be
oral closing arguments, unless there's anything any
else needs to raise?
(No verbal response)
CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: All right. Because
the Staff and the Companies are the proponents of t
Settlement Agreement, I'm going to ask the OCA firs
proceed with a closing statement.
MS. CHAMBERLIN: Thank you. New
Hampshire customers did not get the benefit of thei
bargain. They agreed to have Resident Power repres
them as an aggregator; Resident Power made a contra
PNE; and PNE entered into default. | appreciate th
there's a certain amount of rough-and-tumble in
competition, and that you get a little bit more ris

you have lower rates. However, if that is combined
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the fact that customers did not know of the affilia
arrangement, and they did not disclose their change
their marketing to the Commission when they started
include C&I customers, while those are not direct
causation, it's part of the big picture. And, cust
should be compensated as much as possible. And, to
Resident Power or PNE get change back from the -- f
escrow amount, which was the whole purpose of is to
customers whole in the event of default, | simply d
with that. The amount we calculate, it's an estima
because some customers were on default for differen
amounts of time, for different reasons. It's
administratively difficult to calculate an exact re

but | would argue that the maximum amount of the $1
should be given to customers. If that brings it up

$10, then that is a better amount. It's

regard, because | believe the real harm was the con
and the -- just general chaos that followed. And,
appreciate that Resident Power attempted to mitigat
they entered into a covering contract with FairPoin
Energy. However, due to a variety of factors, that

not result in coverage for all customers. And, fro
customer's perspective, it was difficult, it was

confusing, it was -- created a lot of doubt about t
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security of their electric service. And, that's a very
real harm, even if it can't be expressly quantified

So, for those reasons, the -- the good

news is that overall the system worked, people were not
without power. We are working through notice issue S. |
believe changes to the rules can be made going forw ard,
should this happen again. But that customers deser ve the
full amount of refund that they are -- can possibly be
made available to them. | submit that between $12 and $15
is a more accurate calculation. However, again, be cause
it's an estimate, | would submit that the $100,000 can be
a cap. But that that money should go to customers. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you.

Mr. Carter.

MR. CARTER: Thank you very much. On
behalf of the Companies, we believe that the Settle ment
Agreement and the stipulations are accurate. They provide
a fair measure of compensation to affected customer s. For
some customers, the payment will be far above what their
actual damages are. The payment represents an effo rt to
place a value that across the spectrum of people af fected

will be fully compensated.

Chairperson Ignatius, you made the

{DE 13-059 & DE 13-060} {03-27-13}




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

85

comment that the Stipulation of Facts, you know, re
today by someone appear different in many respects
statements in, for example, the Staff memorandum th
filed on February 27 or in the Order of Notice that
issued in response to that Staff memo. Over the pa
several weeks, there's been, as you pointed out, a
deal of information is shared by PNE and Resident P
much of which is detailed in the prehearing memoran
that we filed. And, which we believe answers many
misconceptions about the events giving rise to this
matter, and the conduct by PNE and Resident Power d
the course of that.

We have worked at length with Staff and
with various members of the OCA over the past sever
weeks to bring all that evidence forward. And, I c
that, from the perspective of the Companies, the
Stipulations and Settlement Agreement fairly reflec
accurate information that has been shared between S
and the Companies.

And, we are certainly available here to
answer any further questions that the Commission ha
either any aspect of the Stipulations or the Settle
Agreement, or any other matters relating to this

proceeding.
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CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you.
Mr. Speidel.

MR. SPEIDEL: Thank you, Chairman
Ignatius. Staff would like to recommend that the
Commission approve this Settlement Agreement betwee n the
Companies, that is PNE, Resident Power, and the Sta ff.
Staff believes that this Settlement Agreement and
companion Stipulation of Facts offers a fair resolu tion of
the matters before the Commission.

As indicated by Mr. Mullen on the stand,

Staff has developed an enormous amount of useful

information and useful lessons during the course of this
proceeding and the events of February of 2013 that will
inform our rulemaking and policymaking going forwar d. So,
there has been a benefit there. And, there's also a
benefit in the form of administrative efficiency, a nd
ensuring that PNE is able to increase its security in
escrow promptly. And, also, that customers will re ceive
$9.50 in compensation for their economic losses pro mptly.
And, Staff also believes that the facts presented i n the
Stipulations give a general overview of the events of
February 2013 that would be useful for the Commissi on, the
public, and other practitioners, and the world at | arge.

So, over the course of this proceeding,
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we have been able to come to settlement that offers many
features that are attractive to different stakehold ers.
And, we appreciate the Commission's consideration o f this

Settlement. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN IGNATIUS: Thank you. | want

to mention a couple of things. It's clear that an awful
lot of ground was covered in what was presented to us
today and in very short order. And, we appreciate the
hard work people put in to trying to resolve it. A s

read the Settlement, what | was struck with is that the
focus seemed to be on customers, and not over the s ort of
"who said what to who" and the tit for tat that it could
have resulted in. And, so, for that, keeping the f ocus on

customers is something that | applaud you all for.

We will take it under advisement. We'll
evaluate the terms and all of the arguments made to day,
and act very promptly, because we understand that t he need

to resolve this quickly has been a driving force

throughout this proceeding, has made it more accele rated,
a little bit of a rollercoaster, and people want to getto
a resolution, which we understand. So, we will end eavor

to do that as quickly as possible.
So, unless there's anything further, we

will take this under advisement, we appreciate your time,
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and we will issue an order forthwith.
(Wher eupon the hearing ended at 11:03

a.m)
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